
St. Stephen Town Council to be held on Wednesday, June 30th, at 5:00pm in the 

Moosehead Room at the Garcelon Civic Center. 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION WILL BE AVAILABLE VIA A LIVE FEED ON THE 

TOWN OF ST. STEPHEN’S FACEBOOK PAGE. 

COUNCIL AGENDA 

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. MOMENT OF REFLECTION

C. ADDITION OF LATE ITEMS

D. ADOPTION OF AGENDA

Proposed Resolution: 

That the Agenda for the Council Meeting of June 30th, 2021, be approved. 

E. MAYOR’S COMMENTS/PROCLAMATIONS

F. DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST

G. PUBLIC AND/OR STATUTORY HEARINGS

a. Statutory Public Hearing of Objections—Z-2-01 and M-2-01
b. Project update Best Western Plus –Tom MacFarlane (via Zoom)
c. Canada 1st Basketball Project Update—Richard Fulton

H. ADOPTION OF MINUTES
a. Minutes of May 26th, 2021

That the Minutes of the Council Meeting held on May 26, 2021 be approved as

presented.

b. Minutes of June 15th, 2021

That the Minutes of the Council Meeting held on June 15th, 2021 be approved

as presented.



 

I. UNFINISHED BUSINESS FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS      
 

 

J. CORRESPONDENCE           
 

 

 

 

K. BYLAWS, PERMITS, AND POLICIES         
 

a. Municipal Plan Amendment—M-2-01 
 
That bylaw M-2-01 be given Third and Final Reading 
 

b. Zoning Bylaw Amendment Z-2-01 
 
That bylaw Z-2-01 be given Third and Final Reading 

 

 

L. NEW BUSINESS           
 

Departmental Reports: 

 

Departmental Information Reports 

1. CAO Informational Report  

2. Planning and Development Report-dated  

3. Treasurer Informational Report  

4. Protective Services Departmental Report  

5. Community Services Departmental Report  

6. Public Works Departmental Report 

 
Proposed Resolution: 

That the Departmental Information Reports be acknowledged and received 

 

 

REQUESTS FOR DECISIONS: 

 
  

a. DTI Five-Year Plan 
 
Proposed Resolution: 
That Council approves the Designated Highways Five-Year Priorities as 
presented.  



 

 
b. Tender Summary—Riverside Drive WWPS#4 

 
Proposed Resolution: 
That Council awards the construction contract to the low tenderer, 
Fairville Construction Ltd. For their Tender Price of $557,300.00 HST 
included.  

 

c. Authorization of Signing Officers and Banking—RBC 
 

THAT the Council of the Town of St. Stephen resolves: 

1. That Royal Bank of Canada (“Royal Bank”) is appointed banker for the 
Town of St. Stephen. 

2. That any one of the Mayor, Deputy Mayor or CAO together with 

Treasurer or Assistant Treasurer for amounts of $5,000 or less or either 

the Mayor or Deputy Mayor together with Treasurer or Assistant 

Treasurer for amounts greater than $5,000 are authorized on behalf of 

the Town of St. Stephen from time to time: 

(a) to withdraw or order transfers of funds from the Town of St. 

Stephen’s accounts by any means including the making, drawing, 

accepting, endorsing or signing of cheques, promissory notes, 

bills of exchange, other orders for the payment of money or other 

instruments or the giving of other instructions; 

(b) to sign any agreements or other documents or instruments 

with or in favour of the Royal Bank, including agreements and 

contracts relating to products or services provided by Royal 

Bank to the Town of St. Stephen; and 

(c) to do, or to authorize any person or persons to do, any one or more 
of the following: 

(i) to receive from the Royal Bank any cash or any securities, 

instruments or other property of the Town of St. Stephen 

held by Royal Bank, whether for safekeeping or as security, 

or to give instructions to Royal Bank for the delivery or 

other transfer of any such cash, securities, instruments or 

other property to any person named in those instructions; 

(ii) to deposit with or negotiate or transfer to Royal Bank, for the 

credit of the Town of St. Stephen, cash or any security, 

instrument or other property, and for those purposes to 

endorse (by rubber stamp or otherwise) the name of the 

Town of St. Stephen, or any other name under which the 

Town of St. Stephen carries on business, on any security or 

instrument; 
(iii) to instruct Royal Bank, by any means, to debit the accounts of third 

parties for deposit to the credit of the Town of St. Stephen; and 
(iv) to receive statements, instruments and other items (including paid 

cheques) and documents relating to the Town of St. Stephen’s 



accounts with or any service of the Royal Bank, and to settle and 

certify the Town of St. Stephen’s accounts with Royal Bank. 

3. That all instruments, instructions, agreements (including contracts relating to 

products or services provided by Royal Bank) and documents made, drawn, 

accepted, endorsed or signed (under the corporate seal or otherwise) as provided in 

this Resolution and delivered to Royal Bank by any person, shall be valid and 

binding on the Town of St. Stephen, and Royal Bank is hereby authorized to act on 

them and give effect to them. 

4. That Royal Bank be furnished with: 

(a) a copy of this Resolution; and 

(b) a list of the names of the persons authorized by this Resolution to act on 

behalf of the Town of St. Stephen, and with written notice of any changes 

which may take place in such list from time to time, and with specimens of 

the signatures of all such persons; each certified by the (1) Mayor and (2) 

Treasurer of the Town of St. Stephen; and 

(c) in writing, any authorization made under paragraph 2(c) of this Resolution. 

 

5. That any document furnished to Royal Bank as provided for in paragraph 4 of this 

Resolution shall be binding upon the Town of St. Stephen until a new document 

repealing or replacing the previous one has been received and duly acknowledged in 

writing by the branch or agency of Royal Bank where the Town of St. Stephen has its 

account. 

 

 
d. Authorization of Signing Officers and Banking—BNS 

 
THAT the Council of the Town of St. Stephen resolves that: 
 

1. We appoint The Bank of Nova Scotia as our banker and agree to the terms set out in 

the Scotiabank Financial Services Agreement, or where applicable, the Scotiabank 

Financial Services Agreement section of the Business Banking Services Agreement. 

 

2. Any two of the following persons are authorized to sign and deliver the Scotiabank 

Financial Services Agreement, any service requests and any other banking 

agreements with you: Mayor or Deputy Mayor, along with the Treasurer or Assistant 

Treasurer. 
 

3. The persons and the required combination of those persons we verify, are the persons 

authorized, and the combination of those persons required, to give instructions, 

verifications and approvals on our behalf from time to time. We will provide this 

verification by a certificate in writing given to you by any two of the officers set out 

below. The most recent certificate given to you will be the current certificate in effect: 

Over $5,000 - Mayor or Deputy Mayor, along with Treasurer or Assistant Treasurer 

$5,000 and under – Mayor or Deputy Mayor or CAO, along with Treasurer or Assistant 

Treasurer. 



4. All instructions, agreements and documents which we sign, make, draw, accept, 

endorse or complete and which are signed by the persons we have authorized from 

time to time are valid and are binding on us. Our seal is not required on any written 

document to make it valid or to show consideration. 

 

5. This Resolution remains in effect until we cancel it by written notice to you 

and you have acknowledged receiving the notice. 

 

e. Field Use Agreement—ASD-S 
Administration seeks Direction 

 
f. Award of Contract—Tourism Consultant 
 

That Council awards the contract for consultant services to undertake a 

Destination Tourism Assessment to Harvey Sawler, in the amount of $25, 

272.58 including HST 

 

g. Community Grant Requests 
i) “The Stage” Proposal (held over from previous meeting) 
ii) St. Croix Catholic Parish  (held over from previous meeting) 
 

Administration seeks Direction 
 

M. QUESTION PERIOD           
 

• Town Clerk will monitor the Facebook Live feed for any questions pertaining 
to items on the agenda.  
 

N. MAYOR AND COUNCILLOR ITEMS/REPORTS       
 

1. Council Reports 
 

O. NOTICE OF CLOSED MEETING         
 
That Council revert to a Closed Session pursuant to the Local Governance Act, as the 
subject matter(s) being discussed relates to section 68(1):  

 

c) information that could cause financial loss or gain to a person or the local government or 
could jeopardize negotiations leading to an agreement or contract; and 
 
g) litigation or potential litigation affecting the local government or any corporation  
 
j) labour and employment matters, including negotiation of collective agreements.  

 

P. RECONVENE TO REGULAR MEETING         



 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 
 

That the meeting be adjourned at _____pm.        

     



LEVEL 3  

LEVEL 2 

SOUTH ELEVATION

WEST ELEVATION

SAINT JOHN N.B.

77 GERMAIN

ROBERT L. BOYCE, ARCHITECT

ARCHITECT

STRUCTURAL:

MECHANICAL:

ELECTRICAL:

ROBERTBOYCE@ROGERS.COM

ST STEPHEN N.B.

SPUR LINE

PROPERTIES INC

MARCH 9,2020

BUDD AVENUE

THESE DOCUMENTS ARE THE PROPERTY

OF BIRD DESIGN-BUILD CONSTRUCTION INC

UNAUTHORIZED USE BY ANY OTHER PARTY

WILL INVOLVE A FEE FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

CELL 506-639-5293

SAINT JOHN N.B.

77 GERMAIN

ROBERT L. BOYCE, ARCHITECT

ARCHITECT

STRUCTURAL:

MECHANICAL:

ELECTRICAL:

ROBERTBOYCE@ROGERS.COM

ST STEPHEN N.B.

SPUR LINE

PROPERTIES INC

BUDD AVENUE

THESE DOCUMENTS ARE THE PROPERTY

OF BIRD DESIGN-BUILD CONSTRUCTION INC

UNAUTHORIZED USE BY ANY OTHER PARTY

WILL INVOLVE A FEE FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

CELL 506-639-5293

NORTH ELEVATION

EAST ELEVATION

EXTERIOR MATERIALS:

DRAINAGE LAYER: 

AIR/MOISTURE BARRIER: DELTA MAX SELF ADHERED MEMBRANE

SEE DETAILS DWG A5 

MIN CANADIAN INFILTRATION/EXFILTRATION: A2

MIN WATER PENETRATION TEST PRESSURE: 400PA

MIN DESIGN PRESSURE: 1680 PA

MIN PERFORMANCE GRADE 35

CW HEAVY DUTY PERFORMANCE CLASS

MODULAR CONSTRUCTION, RE-INFORCED

 6MM PPG SOLARBAN60 LOW-E SHGC .39

GLASS: 1 IN INSULATING GLASS UNITS , 2  LITES

FIXED UNLESS INDICATED

FACTORY PAINTED VINYL WINDOWS

WINDOWS: 

ROOFING: ASPHALT SHINGLES

AREA: 28.9 SF AREA: 35.75 SF

TYPE 2 TYPE 1

SIDING: ENGINEERED WOOD SIDING

MASONRY:THIN-STONE (CAST) VENEER

 5"  CLAPBOARD & ASSOCIATED TRIM

SILVERWOOD STONE, MECHANICALLY FASTENED

FACTORY FINISH: 

LP SMARTSIDE OR EQUAL

AREA: 17.75 SF

TYPE 1a



LEVEL 3  

LEVEL 4  

LEVEL 2 

STRAPPING @ 16" OC

STRAPPING @ 16" OC

1/2" DRYWALL TYPE X
2 layers 5/8" DRYWALL TYPE X

1 HR FR, STC 50  (ULC U311)

CORRIDOR WALLS (GROUND FLOOR)

3-1/2" SOUND  BATT INSULATION

5/8"  TYPE "X" GYPSUM BOARD

2-2x6"  WOOD STUDS @16"

RESILIENT CHANNELS

5/8"  TYPE "X" GYPSUM BOARD

STRAPPING @ 16" OC

STRAPPING @ 16" OC

1/2" DRYWALL TYPE X
2 layers 5/8" DRYWALL TYPE X

1 HR FR, STC 50  (ULC U311)

CORRIDOR WALLS (GROUND FLOOR)

3-1/2" SOUND  BATT INSULATION

5/8"  TYPE "X" GYPSUM BOARD

2-2x6"  WOOD STUDS @16"

RESILIENT CHANNELS

5/8"  TYPE "X" GYPSUM BOARD

GUEST

STRAPPING @ 16" OC

2X6 WOOD STUDS

5/8 EXT SHEATHING

AIR/MOISTURE BARRIER

1" AIR SPACE (1x3 STRAPPING)

BATT INSULATION

2 layers 5/8" DRYWALL TYPE X

1 HR FR, STC 50  (ULC U311)

CORRIDOR WALLS (GROUND FLOOR)

3-1/2" SOUND  BATT INSULATION

5/8"  TYPE "X" GYPSUM BOARD

2-2x6"  WOOD STUDS @16"

RESILIENT CHANNELS

5/8"  TYPE "X" GYPSUM BOARD

W4a

W4

W4

W4

GUEST

GUEST

STRAPPING @ 16" OC

2X6 WOOD STUDS

5/8 EXT SHEATHING

AIR/MOISTURE BARRIER

1" AIR SPACE (1x3 STRAPPING)

BATT INSULATION

2 layers 5/8" DRYWALL TYPE X

1 HR FR, STC 50  (ULC U311)

CORRIDOR WALLS (GROUND FLOOR)

3-1/2" SOUND  BATT INSULATION

5/8"  TYPE "X" GYPSUM BOARD

2-2x6"  WOOD STUDS @16"

RESILIENT CHANNELS

5/8"  TYPE "X" GYPSUM BOARD

W4a

W4

W4

W4

GUEST

MECH'L ROOM SPAELECT'L ROOM

GUEST

STRAPPING @ 16" OC

2X6 WOOD STUDS

5/8 EXT SHEATHING

AIR/MOISTURE BARRIER

1" AIR SPACE (1x3 STRAPPING)

VINYL SIDING

BATT INSULATION

2 layers 5/8" DRYWALL TYPE X

1 HR FR, STC 50  (ULC U311)

CORRIDOR WALLS (GROUND FLOOR)

3-1/2" SOUND  BATT INSULATION

5/8"  TYPE "X" GYPSUM BOARD

2-2x6"  WOOD STUDS @16"

RESILIENT CHANNELS

5/8"  TYPE "X" GYPSUM BOARD

W4a

W4

W4

W4

LEVEL 3  

LEVEL 4  

LEVEL 2 

2X6 WOOD STUDS

5/8 EXT SHEATHING

AIR/MOISTURE BARRIER

3/8" AIR SPACE 

MANUF STONE

BATT INSULATION

1/2" PROTECTION BD

GUEST

STRAPPING @ 16" OC

STRAPPING @ 16" OC

1/2" DRYWALL TYPE X

2 layers 5/8" DRYWALL TYPE X

(MORTAIRVENT)

2X6 WOOD STUDS

5/8 EXT SHEATHING

AIR/MOISTURE BARRIER

BATT INSULATION

(MORTAIRVENT)

SIDING: ENGINEERED WOOD SIDING

MASONRY:THIN-STONE (CAST) VENEER

 5"  CLAPBOARD & ASSOCIATED TRIM

SILVERWOOD STONE, MECHANICALLY FASTENED

FACTORY FINISH: 

LP SMARTSIDE OR EQUAL

W4a

W4

W4

LEVEL 3  

LEVEL 4  

LEVEL 2 

STRAPPING @ 16" OC

STRAPPING @ 16" OC

1/2" DRYWALL TYPE X

SIDING: ENGINEERED WOOD SIDING

MASONRY:THIN-STONE (CAST) VENEER

 5"  CLAPBOARD & ASSOCIATED TRIM

SILVERWOOD STONE, MECHANICALLY FASTENED

FACTORY FINISH: 

LP SMARTSIDE OR EQUAL

1 HR FR, STC 50  (ULC U311)

CORRIDOR WALLS (GROUND FLOOR)

3-1/2" SOUND  BATT INSULATION

5/8"  TYPE "X" GYPSUM BOARD

2-2x6"  WOOD STUDS @16"

RESILIENT CHANNELS

5/8"  TYPE "X" GYPSUM BOARD

LEVEL 3  

LEVEL 4  

LEVEL 2 

STRAPPING @ 16" OC

STRAPPING @ 16" OC

1/2" DRYWALL TYPE X

2 layers 5/8" DRYWALL TYPE X

1 HR FR, STC 50  (ULC U311)

CORRIDOR WALLS (GROUND FLOOR)

3-1/2" SOUND  BATT INSULATION

5/8"  TYPE "X" GYPSUM BOARD

2-2x6"  WOOD STUDS @16"

RESILIENT CHANNELS

5/8"  TYPE "X" GYPSUM BOARD

STRAPPING @ 16" OC

STRAPPING @ 16" OC

1/2" DRYWALL TYPE X

2 layers 5/8" DRYWALL TYPE X

1 HR FR, STC 50  (ULC U311)

CORRIDOR WALLS (GROUND FLOOR)

3-1/2" SOUND  BATT INSULATION

5/8"  TYPE "X" GYPSUM BOARD

2-2x6"  WOOD STUDS @16"

RESILIENT CHANNELS

5/8"  TYPE "X" GYPSUM BOARD

SPA

SAINT JOHN N.B.

77 GERMAIN

ROBERT L. BOYCE, ARCHITECT

ARCHITECT

STRUCTURAL:

MECHANICAL:

ELECTRICAL:

ROBERTBOYCE@ROGERS.COM

ST STEPHEN N.B.

SPUR LINE

PROPERTIES INC

MARCH 9,2020

BUDD AVENUE

THESE DOCUMENTS ARE THE PROPERTY

OF BIRD DESIGN-BUILD CONSTRUCTION INC

UNAUTHORIZED USE BY ANY OTHER PARTY

WILL INVOLVE A FEE FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

CELL 506-639-5293

SAINT JOHN N.B.

77 GERMAIN

ROBERT L. BOYCE, ARCHITECT

ARCHITECT

STRUCTURAL:

MECHANICAL:

ELECTRICAL:

ROBERTBOYCE@ROGERS.COM

ST STEPHEN N.B.

SPUR LINE

PROPERTIES INC

BUDD AVENUE

THESE DOCUMENTS ARE THE PROPERTY

OF BIRD DESIGN-BUILD CONSTRUCTION INC

UNAUTHORIZED USE BY ANY OTHER PARTY

WILL INVOLVE A FEE FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

CELL 506-639-5293

 


  




 


  






GFA
17,656sq ft GROUND FLOOR

HOISTWAY PLAN VIEW

2718

HOISTWAY PLAN VIEW

2718

SAINT JOHN N.B.

77 GERMAIN

ROBERT L. BOYCE, ARCHITECT

ARCHITECT

STRUCTURAL:

MECHANICAL:

ELECTRICAL:

ROBERTBOYCE@ROGERS.COM

ST STEPHEN N.B.

SPUR LINE

PROPERTIES INC

BUDD AVENUE

THESE DOCUMENTS ARE THE PROPERTY

OF BIRD DESIGN-BUILD CONSTRUCTION INC

UNAUTHORIZED USE BY ANY OTHER PARTY

WILL INVOLVE A FEE FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

CELL 506-639-5293

SAINT JOHN N.B.

77 GERMAIN

ROBERT L. BOYCE, ARCHITECT

ARCHITECT

STRUCTURAL:

MECHANICAL:

ELECTRICAL:

ROBERTBOYCE@ROGERS.COM

ST STEPHEN N.B.

SPUR LINE

PROPERTIES INC

BUDD AVENUE

THESE DOCUMENTS ARE THE PROPERTY

OF BIRD DESIGN-BUILD CONSTRUCTION INC

UNAUTHORIZED USE BY ANY OTHER PARTY

WILL INVOLVE A FEE FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

CELL 506-639-5293

GROUND FLOOR AREA: HOTEL BUILDING: 17,656 SQ FT,(1641 SQ METRES)
OCCUPANCIES: 

CONFERENCE: GROUP A2 

SWIMMING POOL: GROUP A3
RESTAURANT: GROUP A2

SPA: GROUP D



UP

GFA 16,490 sq ft 2nd FLOOR

4th FLOOR

HOISTWAY PLAN VIEW

2718

3rd FLOOR

King Adj

King Adj

SAINT JOHN N.B.

77 GERMAIN

ROBERT L. BOYCE, ARCHITECT

ARCHITECT

STRUCTURAL:

MECHANICAL:

ELECTRICAL:

ROBERTBOYCE@ROGERS.COM

ST STEPHEN N.B.

SPUR LINE

PROPERTIES INC

BUDD AVENUE

THESE DOCUMENTS ARE THE PROPERTY

OF BIRD DESIGN-BUILD CONSTRUCTION INC

UNAUTHORIZED USE BY ANY OTHER PARTY

WILL INVOLVE A FEE FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

CELL 506-639-5293

SAINT JOHN N.B.

77 GERMAIN

ROBERT L. BOYCE, ARCHITECT

ARCHITECT

STRUCTURAL:

MECHANICAL:

ELECTRICAL:

ROBERTBOYCE@ROGERS.COM

ST STEPHEN N.B.

SPUR LINE

PROPERTIES INC

BUDD AVENUE

THESE DOCUMENTS ARE THE PROPERTY

OF BIRD DESIGN-BUILD CONSTRUCTION INC

UNAUTHORIZED USE BY ANY OTHER PARTY

WILL INVOLVE A FEE FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

CELL 506-639-5293



TOWN OF ST. STEPHEN 
REGULAR COUNCIL 

WEDNESDAY, MAY 26, 2021 @ 5:00 P.M. 
 

In response to the outbreak of the COVID-19 virus, the public was not permitted to 
attend the meeting; however, the meeting was broadcast live on the Town’s 

Facebook page. 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
          Mayor MacEachern called the meeting to order. 

 
B. MOMENT OF REFLECTION 

 
 Mayor MacEachern requested a moment of reflection. 
 

C.  ADDITION OF LATE ITEMS 
 

 There were none.  
 

D.  ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 

 AGENDA 
 Moved by Councillor Harding 

Seconded by Councillor Hyslop 
58/21 THAT the Agenda for the Regular Council Meeting of May 26th, 2021, be approved.  

CARRIED 
 

E.  MAYOR’S COMMENTS/PROCLAMATIONS   
 

 There were none. 
 
F.  DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST 

 
 There were none. 
 

G.  PUBLIC AND/OR STATUTORY HEARINGS  
 

There were none. 
 
H.  ADOPTION OF MINUTES  

  
i. SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING 

Moved by Councillor Parker 



MINUTES 
REGULAR COUNCIL 
MAY 26, 2021 

2 

  Seconded by Councillor Wheaton 
59/21 THAT the Minutes of the Special Council Meeting held on April 12th,2021  
  be approved as presented.  CARRIED 
 

i. REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Moved by Councillor Hyslop 

  Seconded by Councillor Chisholm 
60/21 THAT the Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting held on April 28th,2021  
  be approved as presented.  CARRIED 
 
 

I.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS FROM PREVIOUS MEETING  
 

 N/A 
  

J.  CORRESPONDENCE 
 
i) St. Stephen Rural Cemetery – Board of Directors 
ii) Saint John Regional Hospital Foundation 
Moved by Councillor Harding 

  Seconded by Councillor Chisholm 
61/21 THAT the Council for the Town of St. Stephen receives the Correspondence for 

 review.  CARRIED 
 

K. BYLAWS, PERMITS, AND POLICIES  
  

  There were none. 
 

L. NEW BUSINESS 
 

Departmental Information Reports 
1. CAO Informational Report (CAO 07-21) 
2. Planning and Development Report – dated May 20th, 2021 
3. Treasurer Informational Report (TR 07-21) 
4. Protective Services Departmental Report (PS 08-21) 
5. Community Services Departmental Report (CMS 09-21) 
6. Public Works Departmental Report (PW 05-21) 

 Moved by Councillor Wheaton 
  Seconded by Councillor Harding 
62/21 THAT the Departmental Informational Reports be acknowledged and received.   

     CARRIED 
 
REQUEST FOR DECISIONS: 
 
i) Tender Results – Combined Sewer Separation & Water Main Renewal – 
Union Street (West to Boundary) 



MINUTES 
REGULAR COUNCIL 
MAY 26, 2021 

3 

 Moved by Councillor Harding 
 Seconded by Councillor Chisholm 

63/21 THAT the construction contract be awarded to the low tenderer, Fairville 
 Construction Ltd. for their Tender Price of $1,673,227.00 (one million six hundred 

seventy-three thousand two hundred twenty-seven dollars) HST included. CARRIED 
 
 ii) Purchase of a new Dump Truck Body for Unit #6 

 Moved by Councillor Hyslop 
 Seconded by Councillor Wheaton 

64/21 THAT Council approve the recommendation and direct the spending of $60,000.00 
(sixty thousand dollars) for the purchase of a new Dump Truck Body. CARRIED 

  
M. QUESTION PERIOD 

 
  Concerns with poor audio of Town Council meetings.   
 

N. MAYOR AND COUNCILLOR ITEMS 
 
 1. Councillor Reports 

  
Councillor Harding 
 

• Calls from residents with concern of drug problem in St. Stephen.  

• Met with NB Power representatives about the Milltown Dam. 

• Attended all meetings of Council. 
 

Councillor Parker 
 

• Attended all meetings of Council. 

• Calls from residents about potholes and spring pickup. 
 
Councillor Hyslop 
 

• Attended Charlotte County Museum meeting – looking for new board 
member. 

• Work with Canada 1st Basketball 

• Attended St. Stephen 150 activities and acknowledged Darren McCabe for 
his knowledge and assistance. 

• Attended all meetings of Council. 
 
Councillor Wheaton 
 

• Focused on planning and implementing St. Stephen 150 Celebrations. 
 

 
 



MINUTES 
REGULAR COUNCIL 
MAY 26, 2021 

4 

Councillor Chisholm 
 

• Attended a meeting with ASD-S about sports fields. 

• Met with dog park committee. 

• Attended Wall of Fame Committee meeting. 
 

Mayor McEachern 
 

• Attended St. Stephen 150 event and thanked committee members and staff 
for their hard work. 

• Commended Geoff Slater’s work on the new mural. 

• Attended meeting with ASD-S about the sports fields. 

• Pleased with success of vaccination clinics at GCC. 

• Thanked residents for their support in the Municipal Election. 
 
 

O. NOTICE OF CLOSED MEETING 
  
  There was none. 
  

P.  RECONVENE TO REGULAR MEETING 
  

N/A 
 

Q.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

  Moved by Councillor Harding 
  Seconded by Councillor Chisholm  
65/21 THAT the meeting be adjourned at 6:01 p.m.  CARRIED 

 
 

 
         _____________________________ 
         Mayor  

 
 
         _____________________________ 
         Town Clerk 



TOWN OF ST. STEPHEN 
SPECIAL COUNCIL 

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 15, 2021 @ 5:00 P.M. 
 

In response to the outbreak of the COVID-19 virus, the public was not permitted to 
attend the meeting; however, the meeting was broadcast live on the Town’s 

Facebook page. 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
          Mayor MacEachern called the meeting to order. 

 
B. MOMENT OF REFLECTION 

 
 Mayor MacEachern requested a moment of reflection. 
 

C.  ADDITION OF LATE ITEMS 
 

 There were none.  
 

D.  ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 

 AGENDA 
 Moved by Councillor Wheaton 

Seconded by Councillor Hyslop 
66/21 THAT the Agenda for the Special Council Meeting of June 15th, 2021, be approved.  

CARRIED 
 

E.  MAYOR’S COMMENTS/PROCLAMATIONS   
 

i. Mayor’s Start of Term Statement – Mayor MacEachern thanked the outgoing 
Town Council for their work over the last 5 years.  He welcomed Councillor 
Thiessen and expressed his gratitude to the new Council for their interest and 
commitment to the Town of St. Stephen.  He looks forward to continuing to 
move the Town forward over the next 4 years. 

 
F.  DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST 

 
 There were none. 
 

G.  PUBLIC AND/OR STATUTORY HEARINGS  
 

There were none. 
 
H.  ADOPTION OF MINUTES  

  



MINUTES 
REGULAR COUNCIL 
JUNE 15, 2021 

2 

   
I.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS FROM PREVIOUS MEETING  

 
 N/A 

  
J.  CORRESPONDENCE 
 

 
K. BYLAWS, PERMITS, AND POLICIES  

  
  There were none. 
 

L. NEW BUSINESS 
 

REQUEST FOR DECISIONS: 
 
Internal Council Appointments: 
 

1. Selection of Deputy Mayor 
 

  Moved by Councillor Chisholm 
  Seconded by Councillor Hyslop 

67/21  THAT Council, pursuant to the Town’s Procedural Bylaw, declares Ghislaine 
  Wheaton to be the Deputy Mayor of the Town of St. Stephen.  CARRIED 
 

2. Innovation and Technology Committee  
a. Councillor Thiessen – Chair 
b. Councillor Hyslop - Member  

3. Border Arena Review Committee 
a. Councillor Chisholm – Chair 
b. Councillor Parker - Member 

4. Selection of Strategic Priority Champions 
a. Multi-Cultural Awareness – Deputy Mayor Wheaton 
b. Poverty Reduction – Councillor Thiessen 
c. Housing – Councillor Chisholm 
d. Tourism – Councillor Hyslop 
e. Economic Development – Councillor Parker 
f. Drug Reduction – Councillor Harding 

 
 External Council Appointments: 
 

1. Business Improvement Area (Downtown St. Stephen) – Councillor Parker 
2. Wall of Fame Committee – Councillor Chisholm 
3. Charlotte County Museum – Councillor Hyslop 
4. Chamber of Commerce – Councillor Harding 
5. Canada 1st Basketball – Councillor Hyslop 



MINUTES 
REGULAR COUNCIL 
JUNE 15, 2021 

3 

6. Chocolate Fest Inc. – Deputy Mayor Wheaton 
 
 
  Moved by Councillor Harding 
  Seconded by Councillor Chisholm 
68/21  THAT Council approves the Council appointments list.  CARRIED 
 

  
 At Large Appointments: 
 

1. St. Croix Public Library Board 
a. Request to reappointment of Ms. Mary Hill. 

 
  Moved by Councillor Parker 
  Seconded by Councillor Hyslop 
69/21  THAT Council, upon the recommendation of the Library Director, renews the 

appointment of Ms. Mary Hill for a two-year term ending May 2023. 
CARRIED. 

 
2. Charlotte County Hospital Foundation Inc. 

a. Request to reappointment of Jodi Donahue. 
 
  Moved by Deputy Mayor Wheaton 
  Seconded by Councillor Chisholm 
70/21  THAT Council renews the appointment of Ms. Joni Donahue to the Charlotte 

County Hospital Foundation for a three-year term ending April 2024. 
CARRIED. 

    Deputy Mayor Wheaton voting in favour of the motion. 
    Councillor Hyslop voting in favour of the motion. 
    Councillor Chisholm voting in favour of the motion.  
    Councillor Parker voting in favour of the motion. 
    Councillor Thiessen voting in favour of the motion. 
    Councillor Harding voting against the motion. 
 

b.   Request to reappointment of Richard Purcell. 
 
  Moved by Councillor Parker 
  Seconded by Councillor Harding 
71/21  THAT Council renews the appointment of Mr. Richard Purcell to the Charlotte 

County Hospital Foundation for a three-year term ending April 2024. 
CARRIED. 

 
 
 

  
M. QUESTION PERIOD 



MINUTES 
REGULAR COUNCIL 
JUNE 15, 2021 

4 

 
   There were none.   
 

N. MAYOR AND COUNCILLOR ITEMS 
 

 N/A 
 

O. NOTICE OF CLOSED MEETING 
  
  N/A 
  

P.  RECONVENE TO REGULAR MEETING 
  

 
Q.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

  Moved by Councillor Harding 
  Seconded by Councillor Thiessen 
72/21 THAT the meeting be adjourned at 5:30 p.m.  CARRIED 

 
 

 
         _____________________________ 
         Mayor  

 
 
         _____________________________ 
         Town Clerk 



BY-LAW NO. M-2-01 
 

A BY-LAW TO AMEND BY-LAW NO. M-2, BEING MUNICIPAL PLAN 

BY-LAW FOR THE TOWN OF ST. STEPHEN 

 
 

     BE IT ENACTED by the Council of the Town of St. Stephen as follows: 

 

 

1. By-law No. M-2, the Municipal Plan By-law for the Town of St. Stephen, is 

amended by changing the designation as shown on the Generalized Future 

Land Use Map attached to the said By-law as Schedule “A-1” thereof for the 

portion of lands shown on Schedule “1” attached hereto and forming part 

hereof, from Industrial designation to Residential designation. 

 

 

Read the first time this    day of        

 

Read the second time this    day of        

 

Read the third time this    day of        

  

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

_________________________        ___________________________ 

  

Allan MacEachern, Mayor           Jeff Renaud, Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



I, Jeff Renaud, of the Town of St. Stephen, in the County of Charlotte and 

Province of New Brunswick, Town Clerk, DO SOLEMNLY DECLARE: 

 

1. THAT I am the Town Clerk of the Town of St. Stephen, a municipal 

corporation, and have personal knowledge of the facts herein declared. 

 

2. THAT the requirements of Sections 25, 110 of 111 of the Community 

Planning Act have been complied with in respect to Bylaw No. M-2-01, A 

By-law to amend By-law No. M-2, Being the Municipal Plan By-law for the 

Town of St. Stephen. 

 

3. AND I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing it to be true 

and knowing that it is of the same force and effect as if made under oath and 

by virtue of the Evidence Act. 

 

 

DECLARED before me at the Town   

of St. Stephen, in the County of      

Charlotte and Province of New            

Brunswick, this    day of                                                         

 

 

____________________________                

  COMMISSIONER OF OATHS  Jeff Renaud, Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



BY-LAW NO. M-2-01 

Schedule “A-1” 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

By-law M-2-01 Schedule “I” 

Portion of PID# 01307024 

changing future land use 

designation from Industrial to 

Residential 



BY-LAW NO. Z-2-01 
 

A BY-LAW TO AMEND BY-LAW NO. Z-2, BEING ZONING BY-LAW 

FOR THE TOWN OF ST. STEPHEN 

 
 

     BE IT ENACTED by the Council of the Town of St. Stephen as follows: 

 

 

1. By-law No. Z-2, the Zoning By-Law for the Town of St. Stephen, is 

amended by changing the zone as shown on the Zoning Map attached to the 

said By-law as Schedule “A” thereof for a portion of those lands shown on 

Schedule “1” attached hereto and forming part hereof, from I-2 (Light 

Industrial) Zone to R-3 (Multiple Unit Residential) Zone. 

 

 

Read the first time this    day of        

 

Read the second time this    day of        

 

Read the third time this    day of        

  

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

_________________________        ___________________________ 

  

Allan MacEachern, Mayor           Jeff Renaud, Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



I, Jeff Renaud, of the Town of St. Stephen, in the County of Charlotte and 

Province of New Brunswick, Town Clerk, DO SOLEMNLY DECLARE: 

 

1. THAT I am the Town Clerk of the Town of St. Stephen, a municipal 

corporation, and have personal knowledge of the facts herein declared. 

 

2. THAT the requirements of Sections 59, 110 and 111 of the Community 

Planning Act have been complied with in respect to Bylaw No. Z-2-01,  A 

By-law to amend Bylaw No. Z-2, Being the Zoning By-law for the Town of 

St. Stephen. 

 

3. AND I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing it to be true 

and knowing that it is of the same force and effect as if made under oath and 

by virtue of the Evidence Act. 

 

 

DECLARED before me at the Town   

of St. Stephen, in the County of      

Charlotte and Province of New            

Brunswick, this    day of                                                         

 

 

____________________________                

COMMISSIONER OF OATHS        Jeff Renaud, Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Schedule “A” 
 

 
 
 
 
  

By-law Z-2-01 Schedule “I” 

Portion of PID# 01307024 

rezoning from I-2 (Industrial Zone) to R-3 

(Multiple Unit Residential Zone). 

 



PROVINCE OF NEW BRUNSWICK 

COUNTY OF CHARLOTTE 

 

 I, JEFF RENAUD, of the Town of St. Stephen in the County of Charlotte and the 

Province of New Brunswick, DO HEREBY CERTIFY:  

 

1. That I am the Clerk of the said Town of St. Stephen and as such have the custody of the 

minutes and records of the Council of the said Town of St. Stephen and of the Seal of the said 

Town. 

 

2. That hereto attached and marked “A” are copies of the resolution adopted pursuant to 

Section 59 of the Community Planning Act (Chapter C-19, R.S.N.B. 2017) at a meeting of the 

Council of the Town of St. Stephen held on the 30th day of June, A.D. 2021. 

 

3. That the resolution identified in the immediately preceding paragraph apply to land 

identified by PID Number 01307024 and which land is apparently owned by: 624914 N.B. Inc. 

 

4. That I have carefully compared the said resolutions with the originals and same are true 

copies thereof. 

 

DATED at the Town of St. Stephen on  

 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I, the 

said Clerk of the Town of St. 

Stephen have hereunto affixed the 

Seal of the said Town the and year 

first hereinbefore written. 

 

 

Jeff Renaud, 

Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 



    “A” 

  

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Section 59 of the Community Planning 

Act, that the rezoning of PID 01307024 from Light Industrial “I-2” Zone to Multiple Unit 

Residential “R-3” Zone, be subject to the following conditions: 

1. That a minimum four-meter-wide (4 m) buffer be established with conifer tree saplings, to 

the satisfaction of the Development Officer, so as to visually screen the uses on the I-2 

(Light Industrial) zoned portion of the property in accordance with the site plan Schedule 

“B-1,” prior to September 1st 2022; 

2. That the eastern access point and driveway connecting to Prince William Street be paved 

with asphalt, or other dust-proof material to the satisfaction of the Development Officer, in 

accordance with the site plan Schedule “B-1,” prior to September 1st 2022; 

3. That the western access point and driveway connecting to Prince William Street be paved 

with asphalt, or other dust-proof material to the satisfaction of the Development Officer, in 

accordance with the site plan Schedule “B-1,” prior to September 1st 2026; 

4. That the overall development be carried out in substantial conformity to the site plan 
‘Schedule “B-1”; 
 

5. That one (1) twelve (12) unit apartment building and any required outdoor amenities or 

parking facilities be complete, or be substantially complete, to the satisfaction of the 

Building Inspector, by September 1st 2022;  

6. That one (1) twelve (12) unit apartment building and any required outdoor amenities or 

parking facilities be complete, or be substantially complete, to the satisfaction of the 

Building Inspector, by September 1st 2026; and, 

7. That the exterior design and cladding for both apartment buildings shall be carried out in 

substantial conformity with the architectural renderings Schedule “B-2,” to the 

satisfaction of the Development Officer. 

 

Further that upon rezoning the subject area, the land and any building or structure thereon must 

be developed and used in conformity with the conditions identified herein.” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

Schedule “B-1” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Schedule “B-2” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

As of June 21st, 2021 

 

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT REPORT 

 

Town Planning Update 

• By-law amendments M-2-01 and Z-2-01 for a proposed apartment development have been 

on hold; 

• SNBSC reviewed with the Town and Dillon Consulting early draft development scheme by-

law site plans for encouraging/orchestrating development on Town-owned land; 

• SNBSC completed drafted a development incentive policy, in alignment with the Municipal 

Plan, for consideration by the Council; 

• SNBSC reviewed a proposed functional plan draft for the industrial park with Future St. 

Stephen; 

• SNBSC participated in June’s strategic planning sessions for the municipality and has 

deliverable. 

Development Update 

• Sixty-four (64) building permit applications processed, reviewed for zoning compliance, and 

forwarded to Town building inspector to date in 2021 (total est. construction value 

$1,766,023.29, total permit revenue for Town: $ 9,088.70); 

• Three (3) change of use development permit issued to date; 

• One (1) new subdivision plan approved to date in 2021 – no change in reporting period; 

• Nine (9) sign permits issued to date in 2021 – no change in reporting period. 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by, 

 
Alex Henderson, Planning Director, M.C.P., MCIP, RPP (NB) 

 
Southwest New Brunswick 

Service Commission 
Report to Council on Planning 

 
       



Southwest New Brunswick Service Commission

Development Permits

DATE DEVELOPMENT PROPOSED FEE

RECEIVED ADDRESS DEVELOPMENT PAID

Apr. 9/21 141 King St., St. Stephen Change of use 50.00$          Issued

MAY

Jan. 26/21 89 Prince William St., St Stephen Public Storage 125.00$        Issued

JUNE

June 10/21 57 King St., St. Stephen Change of use 50.00$          Issued

STATUS COMMENTS





Southwest New Brunswick Service Commission Month: ALL 2021

Sign Permits Town of St. Stephen 

DATE APPROVAL REMOVAL CONSTRUCTION TYPE OF ESTIMATED FEE

RECEIVED DATE DATE ADDRESS STRUCTURE VALUE PAID

JANUARY

Dec. 14/20 Jan. 5/21 Jan. 19/21 246 King St., St. Stephen Portable N/A N/A

Dec. 14/20 Jan. 20/21 Feb. 3/21 246 King St., St. Stephen Portable N/A N/A

Jan. 12/21 Jan. 25/21 N/A 225 King Street Fascia Sign Issued SP-3-21

Jan. 12/21 Jan. 25/21 N/A 225 King Street Fascia Sign Issued SP-4-21

Jan. 12/21 Jan. 25/21 N/A 225 King Street Fascia Sign Issued SP-5-21

Jan. 12/21 Jan. 25/21 N/A 225 King Street Fascia Sign Issued SP-6-21

Jan. 12/21 Jan. 25/21 N/A 225 King Street Fascia Signs (2) Issued SP-7-21

MARCH

Mar. 24/21 Mar. 25/21 Mar. 25/22 123 King Street Portable Sign 25.00$         Issued SP-10-21

APRIL

Apr. 29/21 Apr. 29/21 Apr. 30/22 195 King Street Portable sign Unknown 50.00$         Issued SP-13-21

STATUS

51,500.00$     257.50$       



Southwest New Brunswick Service Commission Month: ALL 2021

Zoning Reviews Town of St. Stephen 

DATE CONSTRUCTION TYPE OF ESTIMATED FEE

RECEIVED ADDRESS STRUCTURE VALUE PAID

JANUARY

Dec. 23/20 60 Union St., St. Stephen Aleration/repair 1,000.00$          25.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

Dec. 29/20 245 Milltown Blvd., St Stephen Window replacement 1,000.00$          25.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

Jan. 07/21 38 Rose Street, St. Stephen Demolition 2,500.00$          25.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

Jan. 08/21 67 Princess St., St. Stephen Alteration/repair to dwelling 300.00$             25.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

Jan. 6/21 9 Elizabeth St., St. Stephen Heat pump 3,933.00$          25.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

Oct. 28/20 207 Milltown Blvd., St. Stephen Installing a Garage Door 5,000.00$          25.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

Jan. 18/21 5 Edgewood Drive, St. Stephen Mini-home 4,000.00$          25.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

FEBRUARY

Jan. 29/21 15 McColl St., St. Stephen Electrical & renos 5,000.00$          25.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

Feb. 1/21 134 King Street, St. Stephen Renovations to create a 4 unit dwelling 60,000.00$        300.00$        Review complete, sent to Manzer

Jan. 08/21 22 Rushton St., St. Stephen Heat pump 4,000.00$          25.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

Feb. 16/.21 11 Milltown Blvd., St. Stephen Heat pump 19,000.00$        95.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

Feb. 4/21 21 Rose St., St. Stephen Fence 7,500.00$          37.50$          Review complete, sent to Manzer Variance for height

MARCH

Mar. 10/21 79 Main St., St. Stephen Siding 4,500.00$          25.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

Mar. 8/21 2 Wildwood St., St. Stephen Mini-home 117,985.00$      794.96$        Review complete, sent to manzer

Mar. 11/21 27 Boundary St., St. Stephen Basement Reno/Home Buisness 19,000.00$        95.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

Mar. 15/21 16 King St., St. Stephen Alteration/repair to commercial structure 20,000.00$        100.00$        Review complete, sent to Manzer

Mar. 17/21 65 West St., St. Stephen Alteration/repair to single family dwelling 1,800.00$          25.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

Mar. 18/21 85 Main St., St. Stephen Heat Pump 7,000.00$          35.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

Mar. 30/21 21 Carleton St., st. Stephen front step 850.00$             25.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

Mar. 31/21 13 Main S.t, St. Stephen Heat Pump 5,000.00$          25.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

STATUS NOTES



APRIL

Jan. 04/21 59 Hawthorne Ave, St. Stephen Concrete slab & Addition 5,000.00$          25.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

Mar. 30/21 43 Riverside Drive, St. Stephen Balcony 2,600.00$          25.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

Apr. 1/21 3 Abbot St., St. Stephen Heat Pump 4,000.00$          25.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

Apr. 1/21 78 Prince William St., St. Stephen Deck and garage 22,300.00$        111.50$        Review complete, sent to Manzer

Apr. 7/21 139 Pleasant St., St. Stephen Addition 8,000.00$          40.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

Apr. 9/21 141 King St., St. Stephen Alteration/repair to commercial structure 300,000.00$      1,250.00$     Review complete, sent to Manzer

Apr. 9/21 56 Duke St., St. Stephen Heat Pump 4,800.00$          25.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

Apr. 12/21 124 King St., St. Stephen Deck  3,500.00$          25.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

Apr. 12/21 9 Murchie Ave., St. Stephen Demolition of a single family dwelling 5,000.00$          25.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

Apr. 13/21 49 Hill St., St. Stephen garage 35,000.00$        175.00$        Review complete, sent to Manzer

Apr. 14/21 95 Marks St., St. Stephen garage 12,000.00$        60.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

Apr. 14/21 31 Church St, St. Stephen baby barn 2,500.00$          25.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

Apr. 15/21 18 Cove St., St. Stephen Deck 4,000.00$          25.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

Apr. 9/21 41 King St., St. Stephen Roof replacement 235,000.00$      1,087.50$     Review complete, sent to Manzer

Apr. 22/21 46 Hawthorne St, St. Stephen Deck 1,000.00$          25.00$          Review complete, sent to Maner

Apr. 23/21 47 Queen St. E., St. Stephen Deck 2,500.00$          25.00$          Review complete, sent to Maner

MAY

Apr. 23/21 2 Princess St., St. Stephen Siding 1,000.00$          25.00$          Review complete, sent to Maner

Apr. 26/21 11 Dow St., St. Stephen Heat Pump 11,000.00$        55.00$          Review complete, sent to Maner

May 3/21 11 School St., St. Stephen Picnic Shelter 10,000.00$        50.00$          Review complete, sent to Maner

Apr. 12/21 35 Main St., St. Stephen Window replacement 2,000.00$          25.00$          Review complete, sent to Maner

Apr. 30/21 18 Marks St.., St. Stephen Foundation repair 10,000.00$        50.00$          Review complete, sent to Maner

May 4/21 19 St. Croix St., St. Stephen Deck 4,500.00$          25.00$          Review complete, sent to Maner

May 4/21 10 River St., St. Stephen Heat Pump 5,000.00$          25.00$          Review complete, sent to Maner

May 6/21 8 King St., St. Stephen Roof 20,000.00$        100.00$        Review complete, sent to Maner

May 6/21 29 Parkwood Drive, St. Stephen siding 4,500.00$          25.00$          Review complete, sent to Maner

May 11/21 113 Queen St. W, St. Stephen Single family dwelling 110,000.00$      775.00$        Review complete, sent to Maner

Apr. 9/21 78 Prince William St., St. Stephen Demo & addition 28,147.00$        140.00$        Review complete, sent to Maner

May 14/21 4 Oaks Way, St. Stephen deck 3,000.00$          25.00$          Review complete, sent to Maner



May 17/21 3 Ross Ave., St. Stephen Foundation repair 4,500.00$          25.00$          Review complete, sent to Maner

May 12/21 274 Milltown Blvd., St. Stephen Heat Pump 22,000.00$        110.00$        Review complete, sent to Maner

May 13/21 235 Milltown Blvd., St. Stephen steps 800.00$             25.00$          Review complete, sent to Maner

May 10/21 33 Riverside Dr., St. Stephen deck 3,500.00$          25.00$          Review complete, sent to Maner

May 6/21 7 Deacon Lane, St. Stephen pool and enclosure 6,838.83$          34.19$          Review complete, sent to Maner

May 12/21 90 Union St., St. Stephen Deck replacement 6,200.00$          31.00$          Review complete, sent to Maner

May 7/21 36 Milltown Blvd., St. Stephen Alteration/repair 35,000.00$        175.00$        Review complete, sent to Manzer

May 12/21 15 George St., St. Stephen Deck 2,500.00$          25.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

May 19/21 54 Queen St. W., St. Stephen shed 500.00$             25.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

May 14/21 42 Thompson Ave., St. Stephen Pool replacement 6,000.00$          30.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

May 17/21 7 St. Croix St., St. Stephen Ornamental Structure attached to fence 700.00$             25.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

May 25/21 11 School St., St. Stephen Window replacement 309,719.46$      1,274.30$     Review complete, sent to Manzer

May 17/21 6 Groom St., St. Stephen pool and enclosure 15,000.00$        75.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

May 27/21 18 St. Croix St., St. Stephen Demolition N/A 25.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

JUNE

May 27/21 74 Union St., St. Stephen pool 7,500.00$          37.50$          Review complete, sent to Manzer VARIANCE

May 28/21 7 Elm St., St. Stephen Replace front porch 9,000.00$          45.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

May 31/21 56 West St., st. Stephen Alteration/repair 65,000.00$        325.00$        Review complete, sent to Manzer

June 2/21 6 Oaksway, St. Stephen Heat pump 6,000.00$          30.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

June 4/21 61 Marks St.,, St. Stephen Deck extension 3,000.00$          25.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

June 8/21 312 Milltown Blvd., St. Stephen pool and deck 6,000.00$          30.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

June 9/21 282 King St., St. Stephen roof 98,250.00$        491.25$        Review complete, sent to Manzer

June 14/21 29 Queen St. W, St. Stephen Steps 2,500.00$          25.00$          review complete, sent to Manzer

June 15/21 26 Queen St. E., St. Stephen Heat pump 5,000.00$          25.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

June 17/21 457 Milltown Blvd, St. Stephen Fire Alarm Upgrade 7,800.00$          39.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

June 14/21 23 Rose St., St. Stephen Pool with enclosure and fence 7,000.00$          35.00$          Review complete, sent to Manzer

























































Page 1 of 5 
 

Town of St. Stephen 

Information Report to Council 

 Report: Protective Services 09-21  

 
To:     Jeff Renaud, Chief Administrative Officer 

From:     Sean Morton, Director of Protective Services 

Resource Staff:   Bylaw Officer, Building Inspector and Animal Control Officer 

Date of Meeting: Wednesday, June 30, 2021 

Subject:  Protective Services Report  

 

Recommendation:  That this report be received for informational purposes. 

 

  

 Fire Chief Report  

 

1. Alarms were:  Town Alarms                           12 

                            Out of Town Alarms              6 

                            Total                                             18  

  Alarms                                                              # Calls                  # FF  # Hours 

1. MVA     2  22  44 

2. ANB Assist     1  6  6   

3. Structure Fire    1  20  40 

4. Alarm (no fire)    5  36  36  

5. Smoke in Building    2  27  27 

6. RCMP/ANB Assist    1  12  24   

7. Chip Pile Fire (LUP)   1  13  48 

8. Unattended Fire    1  1  1 

9. CO Alarm     1  1  1 

10. Rescue (lawnmower rollover)  1  15  15 

11. Nuisance Fire    1  7  7 

12. Public Assist (dog rescue)   1  4  4 

Total 

SSFD      18 

Other FD     32 

St Stephen PW    0 

St Andrews PW    1 

Total calls dispatched    51 (May 19 - June 21) 



Page 2 of 5 
 

 

 

2. Fire Department Activities  
1. Monthly meeting 

2. Fire extinguisher program 

3. Tour of Milltown Dam facilities. 

4. Fundraiser Committee Meeting 

5. New Firefighter Orientation 

 

3. Fire Chiefs Activities 
1. Monthly reporting to the Office of the Fire Marshal. 

2. Monthly payroll entries for volunteers. 

3. Semi-annual volunteer payout. 

4. Senior Management Team meetings. 

5. NBCC Association Training Representative duties.  

6. Director of Protective Services duties. (Building and By-law) 

7. Milltown Dam Community Liaison Committee.  

8. Office of Fire Marshal Zoom meeting. 

9. JHSC meetings and related work. 

10. GNB Press Conferences. 

11. Dalhousie College of Continuing Education Municipal Finance online course. 

12. Volunteer firefighter applications and recommendations. 

13. Volunteer sleep schedule adjustments. 

14. 2021 FD equipment purchasing review. 

15. Strategic planning sessions with Dr. Gord McIntosh, mayor, council, and staff. 

 

4. Personnel 

This month we were able to fill our volunteer sleep schedule vacancies for the first time 

in my tenure as chief. Unfortunately, it will be short lived as Firefighter Jessica Eagan has 

decided to return to working out west and will create a vacancy. Jessica has served SSFD well in 

her time here and we will miss her in her absence. 

 

Sincerely, 

Fire Chief Sean Morton 

 

 



Page 3 of 5 
 

Bylaw Enforcement Report 
 

                  Please find enclosed the report for By-Law –Enforcement. We handled 69 occurrences.  

Assist other Dept. (5) 

Received a call from Kev Sumner regarding a person encroaching onto Town property. 

Patrolled the area and along with the Street Dept. and placed large rocks along the set 

back of the property line to rectify the problem. 

Received a call from a gentleman about the issue of garbage at a residence on Pleasant St. 

Along with the building inspector it was cleaned up by a local contractor. 

Received a call about a hedge obstructing view on Wall and Prince William. 

Patrol to the area and found that it is not an issue. 

Received a call from a gentleman with regards to building/fixing a fence. 

Passed onto the development office. 

Parks and Rec contacted this office about a local business complaining about the placement of 

town flower pots. 

  Advised them to place where they always have and have the business owner call this 

office if he has an issue. 

Assist general public (56) 

 Received a call from a gentleman with regards to refuse on Town property. 

  Spoke to Dave Beech and it was removed. 

 Received a complaint from a lady about her neighbor mowing their lawn on Sunday. 

Informed her that there is no bylaw prohibiting this. 

            Received a call from a lady with regards to having a fire pit. 

  The information was passed onto her. 

Received a call with regards to the noise bylaw. 

  Information was passed onto them. 

 Received a call from a gentleman about his neighbor encroaching onto his property. 

Myself along with the building inspector met with the person to discuss the matter. 

Received a call from a lady with regards to the spring cleanup notice. 

Spoke with her and she is not happy. 



Page 4 of 5 
 

Received a call about from the CAO of St George about our enforcement. 

Had a conversation with him and hopefully it helped. 

Received a call from a lady about her neighbor’s hedge. 

Contacted the neighbor and he will look after same shortly. 

Received a call from a person regarding a yard sale. 

Information was passed on. 

Received a call from a person about their neighbor having a satanic garden next door. 

Patrol made and found a monument and a few whirly gigs on the lawn. 

Lady called regarding installing a pool. 

Bylaw pertaining to pools was sent to her. 

Forty-five notices regarding the spring clean up were distributed throughout the Town. 

Parking (7) 

  Seven warnings given for parking. 

Dog Complaints (1) 

Received a call from a lady who informed this office that she was entering a local pet store with 

her dog after the owner told her it was ok and upon entering her dog was attacked by the store 

owner’s dog, causing some injuries. She was wondering what to do. 

Informed her that unfortunately that this would be a civil matter between her and the 

store owner. 

Regards, 
Brent MacDougall 
By Law Enforcement 
 
Report of the animal control officer 
 
I patrolled the town daily, I responded to all calls and complaints. The post office called and complained 

about a dog on Veazey St.  The dog was very aggressive and not tied that well. I spoke to the owner and 

the problem is better. I spoke to a couple of dog owners about keeping their dogs on a leash. I 

responded to a couple of calls from the RCMP on dogs running loose, one at the Superstore but was 

unable to locate. 

 
Regards, 
Mike Shannon 
Animal Control Officer 
 



Page 5 of 5 
 

Building Inspection Report 

 
The month of May brought in a total of 24 (twenty-four) permits which represents $616,905.29 

(Six Hundred and Sixteen Thousand, Nine Hundred and Five & 29 cents) in building costs. The 

total for the year is 59 (Fifty-Nine) permits at a total amount of $1,550,673.29 (One Million Five 

Hundred and Fifty Thousand, Six Hundred and Seventy-Three & 29 cents). 

 

One (1) Stop Work Order was issued in the month May. This office has 7 (seven) properties we 

are dealing with under the Unsightly By-Law which are active and in process. 

 

Our office dealt with and has filed 29 (twenty-nine) Inspection reports.  

 

No (0) Building Permit waivers for electrical needs were issued. 

 

All required reports were filed with the appropriate government agencies.  

 

It should be noted that prior to issue of a building permit a pre-site inspection is conducted to 

determine if a building permit is needed. All permits are based on the individual pre-inspection 

of the proposed work. If needed a plan review is conducted, (many instances do not warrant a 

permit as the work may be deemed maintenance only), and ongoing inspections are conducted 

throughout the construction period. 

 
Respectively Submitted 
 

Manzer Young 
 

Manzer Young 
Building Inspector  
Town of St. Stephen 
 



Page 1 of 4 
 

Town of St. Stephen 

Information Report to Council 

 Report: CMS 11-21  
 

To:     Jeff Renaud, Chief Administrative Officer 

From:     Kev Sumner, Director of Community Services 

Resource Staff:   Aaron Muzzatti, Nikki Mott, Jeremy McShane & Michelle Vest 

Date of Meeting: June 30th, 2021 

Subject:  Community Services Monthly Report  

Recommendation:  That this report be received for information. 

 

Community Services 

1. Past Month’s Tasks: 

a. Work towards resolving the issue of maintenance, access and scheduling of the school fields 

continues.  

b. St. Stephen 150 –The Bateau renovation work is complete as is the Don Lyons Memorial 

Bench, a second bench was added by Rotary at the Beacon apartments. Topsoil has been 

added and landscaping completed to finish the project. 

c. The Border Arena Review Committee – the committee had a presentation from Kendall 

Kadatz from Future St. Stephen on June 7th, he discussed potential uses for the location. 

d. Town Scheduling Software – We will be going live with the new software on July 19th. 

e. Tourism initiative – please see Request for decision item. The tourism workshop for the 

community began on June 24th, over 20 stakeholders joined the town staff and Future St. 

Stephen to work towards developing a strategy for us.  

f. The dock for the wharf requires additional safety work, the dock is accessible but the gate 

must remain closed at all times. 

g. We are developing the old skatepark as a potential pickleball court to start in early June. 

h. I have been participating in a municipal finance course through Dalhousie University, along 

with Fire Chief Morton. 

i. I have coordinated the JD Campbell Scholarship in conjunction with SSHS and the Mayor. 

 

2. Meetings & other activities: 

a. Community Service departmental meetings every other Tuesday at 10am.  

b. Senior Management Team meetings every Tuesday morning at 9am. 

c. Monthly Joint Health & Safety Meetings at 199 Union St, first Weds of month. 

d. Fundy Recreation Professionals Assoc. (FRPA) zoom meeting every month to discuss 

COVID19 and other issues relating to municipalities. 

e. Monthly Town Council meeting 

f. Various Strategic Planning meetings in June. 

 

Administration & Accounting 

 

1. Monthly Projects (May 2021): 

a. Reviewed Outstanding Invoices – re-sent past due invoices for payment and processed 

payments received.  Fixed any errors in the system. 

b. Sent monthly invoices to various organizations. 



Page 2 of 4 
 

c. Processed the Revenue reports & various special projects for Corporate Services. 

d. Data Entry for Accounts Payable (Corporate Services). 

e. Deposits, banking, and reconciled shifts. 

f. Planning and building the new Recreation system (Summer). 

g. Various administrative and accounting. 

 

2. Statistics (May 2021):  

a. The Walking Track had approx. 520 users check-in. 

b. The Arena had approx. 22 users participate in Public skate times. The floor was put down 

over the ice on May 5th, 2021. 

c. The Fitness Center had approx. 1382 member’s check-in. 

d. The Pool had approx. 1212 member’s check-in. 

e. Membership Sales (approx.): 
i. Monthly = 91 sold. Semi/Annual = 4 sold, Punch Cards =33 sold 

 

Aquatics & Programming 

 

Past Month’s Events: 

a. The W.T. Booth Centennial Aquatic Facility opened on June 28th.  

b. The Garcelon Civic Center Aquatic Facility is scheduled to close on July 5th for one month for 

maintenance.  

Update on Aquatic Programming:  

a. The Free courses concluded with 6 making it to the level of National Lifeguard Service 

successfully, and one still working on physicals to meet the requirement. These candidates will 

start their work term as of June 25th.  

b. The Lifesaving Instructor/Examiner course is scheduled to start on July 23rd and has gone live for 

public and staff registration.  

c. Swimming Lessons at the W.T. Booth Aquatic Facility started on June 28th.  

Operations and Maintenance  
 
Property management report -  Garcelon civic center  

1. Ongoing preventative maintenance in building. 

2. BAS is working well. 

3. Preparing for path to green. 

4. Floor covering is having a bit of an issue with the humidity, this will be the longest its been 

installed over the ice, we are learning lots. 

5. Ice plants set into maintenance, happy to report that an average day, there is usually only 1 ice 

plant running to maintain cold buffer tank at setpoints.  

6. Vaccine clinics are on going.  

7. Attended RecNB board meeting. 

8. Middle of June, 2 maint. employees are scheduled to go to the east coast arena training course 

held in Fredericton. It’s a 3 day course held at the Willy O’Ree arena. I will be attending this 

course as well.   

9. Attended GCC management meetings. 



Page 3 of 4 
 

5 Kings building 

1. Insulation work was completed in the attic area, she is already noticing the A/C seems to be 

keeping up better, the test will be in the winter however 

2. Fixed a bird hole under the soffit area on the east end of the building. 

3. Large plant growth around the outside heat pump bullpen to be cleaned out. To allow for 

proper air flow into the unit. 

4. High heat drains to be installed for the commercial dishwasher. 

Library 

1. Installed new paper towel dispensers in the outside public bathroom as well as the public user 

bathroom in the library. 

2. Had orkin pest control go over and a spray around building to control ants. 

3. Large plant growth around the outside heat pump bullpen to be cleaned out. To allow for 

proper air flow into the unit. 

RCMP building. 

1. Moved the floor plug and repaired where the old plug was located. 

2. Will be closing off the holes in the soffit. 

Request to remove ramp and step on the rear of the building has been made, we will look into removing 
and replacing with smaller deck/step area. This will allow more room for snow removal and driving 
around the building. 
 
Events Development 
 

f. Chocolate Recipe Contest – Began in February and runs monthly, with 1 winner per month 

plus a grand prize winner in December (for 12 recipes total).  We will retain the rights to all 

submitted recipes and can compile a cookbook in the future.  Joint venture between the 

Town and the Chocolatier.  

g. Walking Lap Challenge – March to May 17th.  Winner announced online and on 98.1.  

h. May 8th – Town Wide Yard Sale – indoor yard sale on the arena surface at the GCC. 

i. May 14th @ 6pm – Rotary 150 Scavenger Hunt live on Zoom – 150 Committee donated 2 

prize packages 

j. “Celebrate St. Stephen”  May 15th to 17th – Open to the Public – at the Garcelon Civic Center 

– local vendors, museum exhibits, musicians on the arena surface. Art display from SSMS.  

Art display from caplet entrants. Saturday/Sunday 10-4; Monday 11-7.  Attendance was 487 

people. 

i. Costume Contest May 16th – 2pm – 2 winners – Adult and Child – 2 x $150 

Downtown Dollars prize.  Hosted by Mark Downey  ***Cancelled due to a lack of 

participants*** 

k. May 17th – 150th Anniversary (1871-2021) 

By invite only due to current Covid restrictions - 49 in attendance. 

- 11am - Chocolate Park – representatives from each group placed their caplet in the time 

capsule.  Capsule put in ground – speeches.  MP John Williamson in attendance; Minister 

Scott-Wallace and MLA Kathy Bockus sent their regrets but were in self-isolation due to 

Covid exposure notifications. 

- Mural – on the library – DSS took the lead. 



Page 4 of 4 
 

- Time and Universe statue – Plaque revealed. 

- Bateau – unveiling ***has been postponed as it was not completed in time*** 

 

3. Future Events (Rack cards with events for the year available at GCC desk and around town): 

 

a. Garden Contest – May 17th to New Brunswick Day.  Winners for 4 categories will be 

announced on New Brunswick Day.  Categories announced May 17th and criteria for the 

categories is available on the website and at the front desk of the GCC 

b. Swimming Lap Challenge – May 17th to New Brunswick Day.  Every 150 laps earns a ballot in 

the draw.  Winner receives 150 membership to the GCC. 

c. Summer Concert Series – Every Thursday evening 6:30 – 8:30pm July and August.  Banners 

will arrive June 16th and will be placed in both parks.  July will be Memorial Park and August 

will be Chocolate Park. 

July 1st – Canada Day – event details pending GNB regulations but the Town is partnering with IWK for a 

mini Kids Carnival on the arena surface; market participation pending; Concert in the park from 6:30-

8:30 (GCC rain location). 

July 31st - 150 Strongest Man/Woman Challenge – arena surface.  Time TBC.  10 men and 10 women will 

be competing for the strongest in their division. 

August 2nd – New Brunswick Day - event details pending – waterfront and GCC.  The town will be 

partnering with Chocolate Fest this year and will hold on event on the arena surface. 

August 4th – 8th – International Festival – pending Path to Green Recovery.  Americans confirmed they 

will be doing fireworks on Saturday evening this year; Full Circle will be playing for free for the town at 

the kiosk location.  More events TBC as we are able to line them up. 

August 13-15th – RibFest at the GCC (sponsored by GSAR). 

4. Additional Information: 

a. Covid clinics have begun on the arena surface and will run May-July (currently weekly for 

May and June and biweekly for July) 

b. Grand March will be held at the GCC June 27th.  Operational Plan has no more than 77 

people in attendance on the arena surface (200ftx85ft) at any time. 

c. Floor surface went down May 5th and will be lifted August 4th or 5th in time for hockey camp 

and clinics to start.  Multiple bookings on the floor surface.  Only revenue loss to putting 

down the floor for the 3 months is pickup hockey 2 times per week (no other bookings) but 

floor surface rental revenue more than covers it. 

d. TownSuite meetings began May 12th between them, Nikki and I and will continue 3 times 

per week until migration is complete. Anticipated for mid-July. 

e. First Landing plaque will be created and placed along the waterfront by the 150 Committee 

with assistance from Darren McCabe. 

f. All 150 Merchandise available for sale at the GCC; booklets only for sale at various locations 

around town. 

g. The Town Information Kiosk is scheduled to open July 1st, and pending student employment, 

will operate 7 days a week weather permitting, hours TBC. 

Respectfully submitted, 
Kev Sumner - Director of Community Services 
 



Town of St. Stephen 

Information Report to Council 

 Report:  PW 07-21  

 
To:     Jeff Renaud, Chief Administrative Officer 

From:     Lee Johnson, Director of Operations 

Resource Staff:   Supervisor II, Supervisor I and Treatment Plant Operator 

Date of Meeting: June 30, 2021 

Subject:  June Council Meeting  

 

 

Recommendation:  That this report be received for informational purposes. 

 

 

1: Water system: 

a)  Installed 3  new  Meters. 

b)  Installed 2 new Hydrant. 

c)  Repaired 2 Water Mains. 

d) Repaired 2 Gate valves. 

 

2: Streets: 

              a) Sweept streets and sidewalks. 

b) Cold patched pot holes. 

c) Repaired street signs. 

d) Ground work for Bateau. 

e) Put up High School Banners. 

 

3:  Waste Water:  

a) Videoed 1  Sewer Main. 
b) Videoed 1 Sewer Lateral. 
c) Cleaned Catch Basins 
d) Flushed 4 Storm Sewer Mains. 
e) Repaired 1 Force Main. 

 

. 

 

 

 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 

Project Updates – Town of St. Stephen 

June 14, 2021 
 

Union Street Combined Sewer Separation & Water Main Renewal – Project No. 20-3763 

The tender has been awarded. Currently waiting for a scheduled start date from the Contractor. 

Milltown Boulevard Designated Highway Upgrades 2020 – Project No. 20-2637 

Contractor is scheduled to return to site the week of June 14th to address deficiencies. 

West Street Infrastructure Renewal – Project No. 19-1946 

The work is complete with final payments being processed.  

Riverside Drive WWPS Replacement – Project No. 19-9953 

This project is out to tender.  Tenders scheduled to close on June 25 and be considered for award at the 

June 30, 2021 council meeting.  Dillon is coordinating with NB Power for written agreement to proceed 

with construction while easements are being reviewed.  

Waterfront Revitalization – Project No. 18-7081 

Work is complete with final payments being processed. 

Intersection Upgrades at DQ / King Street – Project No. 21-1713 

Preliminary design of upgrades completed the week of June 7 and issued to the Town for review.  Design 

will be finalized following review and sent to contractor for pricing.  

 

 

 

 



Town of St. Stephen 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 

  Report:  PW 08-21   

 
To:     Jeff Renaud, Chief Administrative Officer 

From:     Lee Johnson, Director of Operations 

Resource Staff:   Rory Pickard, Consultant, David Beach, Streets Supervisor 

Subject:  Designated Highway Five Year Priorities 

 

 

Recommendation:  Council approve the attached “Designated Highways Five Year Priorities” as 

presented. 

 

Background: 

Annually, the Town of St. Stephen is required to submit a list to the Department of Transportation and 

Infrastructure detailing the infrastructure priorities of the town under the Designated Highways Program 

for a five year period. 

 

Attached Council will find a proposed plan prepared in conjunction with Dillon Engineering and reviewed 

by the Director of Operations. 

 

 

 

Option 1 – Approve the Recommendation:  Approve the recommendation as presented. 

 

Option 2 – Approve the Recommendation:  Approve the recommendation with specific amendments 

identified by Council. 

 

Option 3 – Reject the Request:  Council may determine to reject the request entirely.  This option is 

highly discouraged as it would result in no funding for projects in the coming year(s). 

 

 

 

 

 



TOWN OF ST. STEPHEN 
 

DESIGNATED HIGHWAYS 
FIVE YEAR PRIORITIES 

 
 

 
  
Year 2022 
DTI Portion: 

 Milltown Boulevard – Boundary Street to Milltown Customs (approx. 1950 
metres) 

o Mill (pad/level where required) and seal full width. 
o Adjust manhole/valves to finished grade 

 
Total DTI Portion: $537,000  

.   
       
Year 2023 & 2024 
DTI Portion: 

 Church Street – Milltown Boulevard to Railway (approx. 1200 metres) 
o Mill & Seal - Church Street - Milltown Blvd. to Railway 
o Curb - Queensway to Railway, north side   
o Curb - Brewers Lane to Railway, south side  
o Add storm sewer where needed for adequate drainage.            

 
Total DTI Portion: $973,000 

 
 
Year 2025 & 2026 
DTI Portion: 

 Pleasant Street – Milltown Boulevard to Town Limit – Phase I & II (approx. 
1760 metres) 

o Curb - Pleasant St. - Milltown Blvd. to Spring St., north side (2700 
metres) 

o Curb - Pleasant St. - Spring St. to Town limit (1510 metres) 
o Storm sewer (as required) - Spring St. to Town limit (1510 metres) 

 
  Total DTI Portion: $1,915,000 

    
.     
                                                   



1149 Smythe Street
Suite 200
Fredericton
New Brunswick
Canada
E3B 3H4
Telephone
506.444.8820
Fax
506.444.8821

Dillon Consulting
Limited

June 25, 2021

Town of St. Stephen
22 Budd Ave.
St. Stephen, NB
E3L 1E9

Attention: Mr. Jeff Renaud
Chief Administrative Officer

Tender Results – Riverside Drive WWPS #4 Replacement – St. Stephen, NB - Project
No: 19-9953

Tenders for the above noted project were opened publically at the Town Office at
11:00 AM, local time, June 25, 2021.

Two (2) tenders were received in response to a Public Tender Call with the results
shown below and summarized on the accompanying Bid Summary.

TENDERER TENDER PRICE
(incl. 15% HST)

Fairville Construction Ltd. $ 557,300.00
Fundy Contractors Limited $ 874,000.00

Engineer’s Estimate $ 420,000.00

All accepted Tenders submitted have been checked by this office and found to
conform to the requirements of the Tender Documents.

The low tender price exceeds the construction budget provided for in the Gas Tax
plan which was $371,500 including HST.  This budget initially reflected 2019
construction and did not account for the high fluctuation in building projects that
have been experienced during the COVID pandemic due to material shortages and
price increases.

Upon review of the overall Gas Tax program with the Town Treasurer, this project
increase can be accommodated in the program with some adjustments to projects
scheduled for later years.  We understand through our discussions with Public Works
that the existing pumping station structure is in poor condition, requires regular
repair and therefore replacement should not be delayed significantly.



Should council choose to proceed, it would be in order to award the construction
contract to the low tenderer, Fairville Construction Ltd. for their Tender Price of
$ 557,300.00 HST included.

Following award, we propose to do a thorough review of the project with the
contractor prior to initiation to seek cost saving measures through review of
alternative products or construction methods.  A summary will be provided to the
Town for discussion.

Should you have any questions or require additional information, please contact this
office at your earliest convenience.

Yours truly,

DILLON CONSULTING LIMITED

Rory Pickard, P.Eng.
Project Manager

Attachment

cc: Tim Tozer – Town of St. Stephen
Lee Johnson – Town of St. Stephen

Our file: 19-9953



.3 SCHEDULE OF PRICES
Riverside Drive WWPS #4 Replacement
St. Stephen, NB
Project No. 19-9953

Item Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount
M6 EXTRA WORK (Municipal) PROVISIONAL SUM 20000.000 20000.000 20000.00
P1 RIVERSIDE DRIVE WWPS #4

.1 Riverside Drive WWPS #4 3 each 0.00 537300.00 0.00 854000.00 0.00 400000.00

Total 557300.00 874000.00 420000.00
% Above Low Bid 56.83% -24.64%

BID SUMMARY 06/25/2021

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATEFairville Construction Ltd. Fundy Contractors Limited



Town of St. Stephen 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 

  Report:  TR 09-21   

 
To:     Jeff Renaud, Chief Administrative Officer 

From:     Frank Godsoe, Assistant Treasurer 

Resource Staff:   Treasurer 

Date of Meeting: June 30, 2021 

Subject:  Royal Bank of Canada Signing Authorities 

 

Recommendation For Resolution: 
 
ROYAL BANK OF CANADA SIGNING AUTHORITIES  
 
THAT the Council of the Town of St. Stephen resolves:  
 
1.  That Royal Bank of Canada (“Royal Bank”) is appointed banker for the Town of St. Stephen.  
2.  That any one of the Mayor, Deputy Mayor or CAO together with Treasurer or Assistant 

Treasurer for amounts of $5,000 or less or either the Mayor or Deputy Mayor together with 
Treasurer or Assistant Treasurer for amounts greater than $5,000 are authorized on behalf of 
the Town of St. Stephen from time to time:  

 

 
 

 

(a) to withdraw or order transfers of funds from the Town of St. Stephen’s accounts by any 
means including the making, drawing, accepting, endorsing or signing of cheques, 
promissory notes, bills of exchange, other orders for the payment of money or other 
instruments or the giving of other instructions;  

(b) to sign any agreements or other documents or instruments with or in favour of the 
Royal Bank, including agreements and contracts relating to products or services 
provided by Royal Bank to the Town of St. Stephen; and  

(c)  to do, or to authorize any person or persons to do, any one or more of the following:  
(i)  to receive from the Royal Bank any cash or any securities, instruments or other 

property of the Town of St. Stephen held by Royal Bank, whether for 
safekeeping or as security, or to give instructions to Royal Bank for the delivery 
or other transfer of any such cash, securities, instruments or other property to 
any person named in those instructions;  

(ii)  to deposit with or negotiate or transfer to Royal Bank, for the credit of the Town 
of St. Stephen, cash or any security, instrument or other property, and for those 
purposes to endorse (by rubber stamp or otherwise) the name of the Town of 
St. Stephen, or any other name under which the Town of St. Stephen carries on 
business, on any security or instrument;  



 
BACKGROUND 

Royal Bank of Canada is an appointed banker for the Town of St. Stephen and accepts payments 

and payment instructions for our Water and Sewerage Fund bank accounts as well as a Trust 

Account.  The bank also provides interim funding for capital projects as approved by the 

Municipal Capital Borrowing Board including bank accounts related to these projects. 

The request for the resolution to be updated is a result of the new/revised appointment of the 

Mayor and Deputy Mayor, who are both signing officers on the account.  The resolution also 

approves the signing limits and authorizations required for payments based on payment 

thresholds. 

OPTIONS 

Option 1-Approve the recommendation and direction: Council may determine that the proposed 

request is appropriate and may approve the recommendation and direction. 

Option 2-Revise Authorizations and payment thresholds: Council may determine that it is appropriate to 

approve the bank and adjust the terms of the resolution regarding authorization for instructions and 

agreements with the bank, including payment thresholds. 

 

(iii)  to instruct Royal Bank, by any means, to debit the accounts of third parties 
for deposit to the credit of the Town of St. Stephen; and  

(iv)  to receive statements, instruments and other items (including paid cheques) 
and documents relating to the Town of St. Stephen’s accounts with or any 
service of the Royal Bank, and to settle and certify the Town of St. Stephen’s 
accounts with Royal Bank.  

3.  That all instruments, instructions, agreements (including contracts relating to products or 
services provided by Royal Bank) and documents made, drawn, accepted, endorsed or 
signed (under the corporate seal or otherwise) as provided in this Resolution and delivered 
to Royal Bank by any person, shall be valid and binding on the Town of St. Stephen, and 
Royal Bank is hereby authorized to act on them and give effect to them.  

4.  That Royal Bank be furnished with:  
(a)  a copy of this Resolution; and  
(b)  a list of the names of the persons authorized by this Resolution to act on behalf of 

the Town of St. Stephen, and with written notice of any changes which may take 
place in such list from time to time, and with specimens of the signatures of all such 
persons;  
each certified by the (1) Mayor and (2) Treasurer of the Town of St. Stephen; and  

(c)  in writing, any authorization made under paragraph 2(c) of this Resolution.  
5.  That any document furnished to Royal Bank as provided for in paragraph 4 of this 

Resolution shall be binding upon the Town of St. Stephen until a new document repealing or 
replacing the previous one has been received and duly acknowledged in writing by the 
branch or agency of Royal Bank where the Town of St. Stephen has its account.  

 



Town of St. Stephen 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 

  Report:  TR 10-21   

 
To:     Jeff Renaud, Chief Administrative Officer 

From:     Frank Godsoe, Assistant Treasurer 

Resource Staff:   Treasurer 

Date of Meeting: June 30, 2021 

Subject:  The Bank of Nova Scotia Signing Authorities 

 

Recommendation For Resolution: 
 
THE BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA SIGNING AUTHORITIES  
  
THAT the Council of the Town of St. Stephen resolves that:  
1.  We appoint The Bank of Nova Scotia as our banker and agree to the terms set out in the 

Scotiabank Financial Services Agreement, or where applicable, the Scotiabank Financial Services 
Agreement section of the Business Banking Services Agreement.  

2. Any two of the following persons are authorized to sign and deliver the Scotiabank Financial 
Services Agreement, any service requests and any other banking agreements with you: Mayor or 
Deputy Mayor, along with the Treasurer or Assistant Treasurer.  

3.  The persons and the required combination of those persons we verify, are the persons 
authorized, and the combination of those persons required, to give instructions, verifications 
and approvals on our behalf from time to time. We will provide this verification by a certificate 
in writing given to you by any two of the officers set out below. The most recent certificate 
given to you will be the current certificate in effect: Over $5,000 - Mayor or Deputy Mayor, 
along with Treasurer or Assistant Treasurer $5,000 and under – Mayor or Deputy Mayor or CAO, 
along with Treasurer or Assistant Treasurer. 

4.  All instructions, agreements and documents which we sign, make, draw, accept, endorse or 
complete and which are signed by the persons we have authorized from time to time are valid 
and are binding on us. Our seal is not required on any written document to make it valid or to 
show consideration.  

5.  This Resolution remains in effect until we cancel it by written notice to you and you have 
acknowledged receiving the notice.  

 
BACKGROUND 

The Bank of Nova Scotia is an appointed banker for the Town of St. Stephen and accepts 

payments and payment instructions for our General Fund bank accounts.  The bank also 

manages accounts relating to accounts such as payroll and reserve accounts.  

The request for the resolution to be updated is a result of the new/revised appointment of the 

Mayor and Deputy Mayor, who are both signing officers on the account.  The resolution also 



approves the signing limits and authorizations required for payments based on payment 

thresholds. 

OPTIONS 

Option 1-Approve the recommendation and direction: Council may determine that the proposed 

request is appropriate and may approve the recommendation and direction. 

Option 2-Revise Authorizations and payment thresholds: Council may determine that it is appropriate to 

approve the bank and adjust the terms of the resolution regarding authorization for instructions and 

agreements with the bank, including payment thresholds. 

 



Town of St. Stephen 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 

Report:  CMS 12-21 

 
To:     Jeff Renaud, Chief Administrative Officer 

From:     Kev Sumner, Director of Community Services 

Resource Staff:    

Date of Meeting: Wednesday, June 30th, 2021 

Subject:  Decision Item – School Fields Maintenance 

 

Recommendation: That Town Council provides direction to administration on the agreement with 

Anglophone District School – South (ASD-S) regarding maintenance of the school athletic fields. 

 

BACKGROUND 

After meeting representatives from ASD-S on May 10th, the Town staff received the first draft of an 

agreement on June 4th, negotiations have been on-going but in the spirit of allowing community user 

groups to play we have started assisting with lining and dragging selected fields once a week from June 

24th. The most recent draft we received was sent on June 23rd and is attached. 

The issues that have arisen… 

1. None of the community groups are using the only Town owned field (Rotary Field). 

2. The administration would prefer section 8 be a mutual indemnification clause. 

3. The scheduling for games this year has been carried out by ASD-S’s website and is a resource 

utilized by other communities around the district.  

4. Major capital improvements, who will pay for these as this is not Town property. 

 

OPTIONS 

Option 1—approve the agreement:  That Town Council approves the agreement as presented from ASD-

S on June 23rd. 

Option 2—reject the agreement:  That Town Council rejects the agreement. 

Option 3 – Recommend staff re-negotiate the agreement:  Town Council identify issues to be addressed 

and directs staff to prepare a counter proposal accordingly. 



THIS AGREEMENT made in triplicate this 1st day of June 2021. 

 

BETWEEN:     

DISTRICT EDUCATION COUNCIL OF Anglophone School District - South 

(ASD-S), a body corporate, under and by virtue of Section 19 of the Schools Act, 

R.S.N.B. 1973, cS-5, (hereinafter called the “School District”) 

 

      OF THE FIRST PART 

 

AND:     THE TOWN OF ST. STEPHEN, (hereinafter called the  

     “Town”)  

 

      OF THE SECOND PART 

 

 

  WHEREAS the School District is possessed of certain school property, known as 

the Rod Wilson field and the St. Stephen Elementary School ballfield both located at St. Stephen 

Elementary; Fan #1 field and front and back soccer fields located at St. Stephen High School and 

the Milltown ballfield located at Milltown Elementary (hereinafter called the “sport fields”), 

located in the Town of St. Stephen in the Province of New Brunswick.   

  AND WHEREAS the Town is desirous of scheduling community use on the 

aforementioned school fields,  

  AND WHEREAS the School District is agreeable to community use of said 

school fields. 

  NOW THEREFORE THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH that in consideration 

of the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) of lawful money of Canada paid by each of the parties hereto 

to the other of them respectively, the receipt whereof by each of them is hereby respectively 

acknowledged, and in consideration of the mutual promises and undertakings of the parties 

hereinafter set forth, the parties hereto do hereby respectively covenant and agree each with the 

other as follows: 

1. The full title and all proprietary interest in the land or location, approved as aforesaid, 

 shall at all times be and remain vested in the Minister. 

2. The School District, on the conditions set forth herein, hereby grant to the Town during 

the term hereinafter provided, a license to use the approved location only for community 

recreational purposes. 

3. This Agreement and the license hereby conferred shall be for a term not to exceed two  

 (2) years from the date of execution hereof as inscribed above, and shall be 

 automatically renewed thereafter for consecutive terms of two (2) years, upon the same 

 terms and conditions as are herein contained unless notice of intention to terminate this 



 2 

 Agreement is given by any of the parties to the others at least sixty (60) calendar days  

 prior to the end of either the initial term hereof or of any renewal of such term. 

4. The Town shall be responsible for all minor maintenance and repair of the sport fields 

from May 1st to October 31st and all parts thereof, including, without limitation to the foregoing, 

all fencing, grading, surfacing, lighting and markings. 

5. The Town shall be responsible for the booking of the sport fields from May 1st to October 

31st for community and can impose a user fee and maintain the proceeds to offset any 

incremental costs due to required field maintenance.  

6.  The Town shall be responsible for ensuring the sport fields are closed and bookings are 

cancelled as required for community use during inclement weather (i.e. heavy rain) or the 

fields have standing water from the last rain event.      

 7.  If major repairs are required for any of the fields covered in this agreement, the Town 

will discuss with the School District outside of this agreement. 

8. The Town shall indemnify the Minister during the time of community use of the sport 

fields, against all liability, claims, actions, suits, damages, costs or expenses due to or 

arising out of any act or neglect by the Town, its servants, employees, agents, invitees or 

licensees in or about the sports field or arising out of any breach, violation, or non-

performance by the Town of any provision of this Agreement on the liability for injury to 

the person or property of the servants, employees, agents, invitees or licensees of the 

Town, the School District, and the Minister respectively. 

9. The School District shall be responsible for mowing and dragging the sport fields once a 

week during the season from May 1st to October 31st. Any additional mowing or dragging 

during this time period, will be the responsibility of the Town. The School District will 

collaborate with the Town regarding the initial lining of the fields.  

10. Students under the supervision of the School District shall have priority with respect to 

the use of the sports fields during school hours and when school teams are operating 

during the school year, during the months of May to June and September to October. At 

all other times, the Town will have priority with respect to the usage of the sports fields 

and may establish rules, regulations and schedules governing the use, occupation, 

operation, and security, provided that these are not inconsistent with this Agreement. 

11. This Agreement may be amended at any time, provided that the parties hereto consent to   

 such amendment in writing. 



 3 

 

 THIS AGREEMENT shall ensure to the benefit of and be binding upon each of the 

parties hereto, their successors and assigns, PROVIDED, however, that the Town shall not 

assign all or any of its rights hereunder without the prior written consent of the School District. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have caused these presents to be executed 

by the proper officers of the Town of Hampton and the Anglophone School District – South 

(ASD-S). 

SIGNED, SEALED AND     

DELIVERED in the presence of:    

 

 

Witness      DISTRICT EDUCATION COUNCIL 

OF ANGLOPHONE SCHOOL DISTRICT 

– SOUTH (ASD-S)  

 

 

       _______________________________ 

       CHAIRMAN 

 

____________________________   _______________________________ 

       SUPERINTENDENT  

 

        

       TOWN OF ST. STEPHEN 

 

  

       ________________________________ 

       MAYOR 

 

_____________________________   ________________________________ 

       CLERK     



Town of St. Stephen 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 

Report:  CMS 10-21 
 

To:     Jeff Renaud, Chief Administrative Officer 

From:     Kev Sumner, Director of Community Services 

Resource Staff:   Kendall Kadetz, Future St. Stephen & Community Services staff 

Date of Meeting: Tuesday, June 30th, 2021 

Subject:  Decision Item – Tourism Consultant Request for Proposal 

 

Recommendation For Resolution 

That the contract for a destination tourism assessment be awarded to Harvey Sawler in the amount of 

$25,272.58 including HST.   

 

BACKGROUND 

The Town of St. Stephen embarked on a tourism initiative in January 2020, we have approved financial 

assistance from Atlantic Canada Opportunities Agency (ACOA) for $11,000, from the Province of New 

Brunswick for $17,000 and the Town has $5,000 budgeted for the project which comes to $33,000. 

  

PROPOSAL  SCORE FEE 

1. Harvey Sawler 
2. Bill & Mary Kendrick 
3. Paul McGraw 
4. Gail Bremner 
5. Bev Hughes 
6. Camille Aubut 

90/110 
87/110 
81/110 
87.5/110 
81/110 
82/110 

$25,272.98 
$25,852.63 
$25,260.00 
$25,990.00 
$25,999.00 
$26,000.00 

 

OPTIONS 

Option 1—approve the recommendation:  That Council approves the Recommendation that Harvey 

Sawler is contracted to assist the Town of St. Stephen in carrying out a destination tourism assessment.  

Option 2—consider other alternatives:  That another certified consultant be hired. 

Option 3—reject the recommendation:  That the project does not proceed at this time. 




















	1 Council Agenda June 30 2021.pdf
	1a A3.0TO6REVJUNE2021.pdf
	1b A2TO6REVJUNE2021.pdf
	2 Council Minutes 05-26-2021.pdf
	3 Council Minutes 06-15-2021.pdf
	4 M-2-01 .pdf
	4 Z-2-01.pdf
	4a Section 59 Resolution of Terms and Conditions PID# 01307024.pdf
	5 June 2021 SNBSC Report to Council on Planning.pdf
	5 St Stephen Development 2021 for council.pdf
	5 St Stephen signs 2021 for council.pdf
	5 St Stephen Zoning Reviews 2021 for council.pdf
	6 Treasurer's Report.pdf
	7 09-21 PS June Informational Report to Council.pdf
	8 Community Services - June 2021.pdf
	9 PW 07-21  PUBLIC WORKS-may.pdf
	Project Updates – Town of St. Stephen
	June 14, 2021
	Union Street Combined Sewer Separation & Water Main Renewal – Project No. 20-3763
	The tender has been awarded. Currently waiting for a scheduled start date from the Contractor.
	Milltown Boulevard Designated Highway Upgrades 2020 – Project No. 20-2637
	West Street Infrastructure Renewal – Project No. 19-1946
	Riverside Drive WWPS Replacement – Project No. 19-9953
	Waterfront Revitalization – Project No. 18-7081
	Work is complete with final payments being processed.
	Intersection Upgrades at DQ / King Street – Project No. 21-1713
	Preliminary design of upgrades completed the week of June 7 and issued to the Town for review.  Design will be finalized following review and sent to contractor for pricing.


	10 REQUEST FOR DECISION PW-08-21 - DTI  FIVE YEAR PLAN 2021.pdf
	11 DTI FIVE YEAR PLAN - 2022-2026 06 07 2021.pdf
	12 Tender Summary  for 199953.pdf
	13 TR 09-21- Authorization of Signing Officers and Banking -  RBC.pdf
	14 TR 10-21- Authorization of Signing Officers and Banking  - BNS.pdf
	14aCMS 12-21 Decision Item – School Fields Maintenance 300621.pdf
	14b AGREEMENT Town of St Stephen June 2021.pdf
	15 CMS 10-21 Decision Item – Tourism Consultant Request for Proposal 300621.pdf
	16-The Stage Proposal.pdf
	17-st croix catholic parish request for funding.pdf

